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Chief Executive report

The company’s year-end has been changed from June to March each year; therefore the comparative period that 
is being reported on is not aligned with the prior period. The Board is pleased to advise that for the 12 months to  
31 March 2010 sales revenue increased by  approximately R23,5 million when compared to the previous period 
although the prior period was only nine months of trading. Sales revenue for the 12-month period compared to the 
prior period annualised results increased by 16,45%. This can be attributed to the strategy and plan to promote 
and expand added-value brands changing the company’s sales mix to cope with the expected reduction in volume 
whilst the company reposition the tomato sauce brand so that it can regain its volume levels without reducing 
its margin. New lightweight environmentally friendly packaging was introduced in February 2010. Volume was 
effectively down 1% on annualised revenue.  

Gross profit increased by 3,5% which is attributed to the turnaround strategy and a focus on reducing and 
controlling costs. Gross profit improved by 11% compared to the prior period. 

Operating expenses reduced by approximately 8% for the period under review when comparing on an annualised 
basis. This is an on-going process which has not been fully realised at 31 March 2010. 

The company is pleased to report a return to profitability following the restructuring efforts over the past two years 
with earnings per share of 1,12 cents compared to a loss per share of 3,54 cents in the prior period.

Headline earnings have moved from a headline loss of R3,4 million to headline earnings of R1,2 million, being a 
loss of 3,54 cents per share in the prior period and 1,18 cents headline earnings per share for the current year.

The company has significantly improved its management of working capital with bank balances showing a 
substantial increase over the prior period.

We will continue to manage our cash-flows carefully and reduce our finished stock holdings by increasing our 
production capacity on our fast moving brands. The net asset value and tangible net asset value per share of the 
company improved to 17,54 cents and 16,01 cents, respectively.

Our current trade customers namely the major supermarket chain stores, intend opening more than 100 stores 
in the summer and new warehousing and distribution centres, and existing distribution centres have planned 
expansion in the months ahead. This will benefit and increase the distribution of the brands that we produce.

We are producing certain of our brands in smaller pack sizes and single servings to target and increase the 
distribution of our brands into new markets namely wholesale and cash ’n carry, and independently owned and 
managed  supermarkets.

We will also focus on growing our sales and brands in Botswana, Zimbabwe, Namibia and Swaziland by promoting 
the right pack sizes and products to suit those markets and most importantly partnering with the right distributors 
in these countries.

We will also launch a smart choice, premium low salt additive free tomato sauce for the health conscious. 

We continue to invest and maintain a high rating at our annual factory audits, that are conducted by independent 
auditors and accepted by the leading supermarket chain stores and we have provided for the changes that must 
be made on our packaging to be in line with the revised regulations relating to the labelling and advertising of 
foodstuffs.

We have planned investments to increase our capacity on our tomato sauce line by 40% and adjusted to 
automatically fill our new plastic bottles, this is expected to be fully operational by spring.

We have planned investments to increase our capacity on the veri peri line by 60% and automate the filling in a 
closed system to be operational for the summer.

The veri peri brand will be promoted as a truly African brand made uniquely with indigenous ingredients namely 
“Birds Eye” chilli.
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Chief Executive report (continued)

We have planned the installation of a new steam sleeving tunnel to improve our capability and versatility to sleeve 
our smaller pack-sizes to improve its decoration and shelf impact.

An investment has been made to install a new server that is adequate to support the integrated software of Pastel 
Evolution and this has been linked to our production. The training, trail run and implementation is expected to 
benefit the business in the medium term.

The restructure of our staff will be in line with workflows to support the company’s system, this has been a 
challenge but the future benefits and savings exceed the short-term investments and strain.

The outlook for the summer is positive and we intend improving our financial performance further.  

MT Pather

Chief Executive Officer
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Corporate governance report as at 31 March 2010

The Board of Directors is firmly committed to promoting corporate governance and has implemented the 
recommendations as contained in the second King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2002  
(“King II”), where appropriate. In addition, the requirements of the Corporate Laws Amendment Act published on  
14 December 2007 (“the Corporate Law Amendment Act”) as they relate to corporate governance and to the 
company have been considered. The Board has continued implementing various aspects of compliance with 
King II during the year as more fully detailed below and will begin introducing compliance with King III during the 
forthcoming year. 

1. Composition of the Board
AH-Vest has a unitary board structure. During the year under review, the Board consisted of three non-executive 
directors, two of whom are independent, and four executive directors. Non-executive  independent director Mrs MJ 
Janse van Rensburg resigned from the board in October 2009. The non-executive directors are of sufficient calibre for 
their views to carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions. The Board meetings are attended by representatives  
from the company’s Designated Advisor in accordance with JSE Listings Requirements for companies listed on  
the Alternative Exchange (“AltX”). The directors of the company are set out on page 4 of this Annual Report.

2. Independence of the Board
The roles of chairman and chief executive officer are separate. The Board is chaired by a chairman, Parmanathan 
Mariemuthu. The non-executive directors are not appointed under service contracts and their remuneration (see 
note 30) is not linked to the Group’s financial performance. 

3. Appointment and re-election of the Board
During the year, Mrs MJ Janse van Rensburg resigned as a non-executive director and chairman of the audit 
committee. Mrs R Manning was appointed as new chairman of the audit committee. Due to required rotation of 
directors, Mrs Rosalie Manning and Mr Melville Aubrey Hill will retire as directors and, being eligible, will offer 
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting of shareholders. Curricula vitae are set out in the notice 
of annual general meeting attached to this annual report. 

No formal procedure exists for appointments to the Board or for the delegation of the functions of the Board. New 
appointments are considered by the Board as a whole. A nominations committee has not been appointed, the 
Board being of the opinion that this is not necessary given the size of the company.

4. Role and function of the Board
The Board is responsible for the strategy, acquisition and disinvestment policy, risk management, financing and 
corporate governance policies of the company, determines the company’s purpose and values and ensures that 
the Group complies with codes of sound business practice.

The Board has unrestricted right of access to all company information, records, documents and property and 
independent legal advice when required.

The Directors recognise that they are responsible for the Group’s system of financial and internal controls (see 
paragraph 10 below). The executive directors are responsible for identifying, analysing, reporting and managing 
Group risk which forms part of their everyday functions.

In accordance with AltX Listings Requirements, the directors of AH-Vest are required to attend a four day Directors’ 
Induction Programme. Executive directors and non-executive directors have attended this course. 

5. Board committees
In terms of the AltX Listings Requirements the company has established an audit committee which reports to the 
Board of Directors.
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Corporate governance report (continued)

5. Board committees (continued)

5.1 Audit and risk committee and controls
During the year, Martie Jacoba Janse van Rensburg, Rosalie Manning and Michelle Krastanov, representing 
the Designated Advisor, were members of the audit committee. With the resignation of Ms van Rensburg from 
the Board and as Chairman of the audit committee, Rosalie Manning was appointed as Chairman of the audit 
committee. Furthermore, subsequent to year end, with effect from 1 April 2010, the JSE Listings Requirements 
no longer require the Designated Advisor to act as a member on the committee. New appointments to the board 
and the audit committee will be made during the coming year.

King II recommends that the chairman of the Board should not be the chairman of the audit committee. The 
Financial Director does not sit on the committee, but is invited to attend meetings of the committee. The committee 
operates in accordance with written terms of reference as confirmed by the Board, which sets outs its authority 
and duties. The external auditors have free access to this committee and are invited to attend all of its meetings, 
which occur at least twice per year. The majority of the members of the audit committee are financially literate. 

One of the primary objectives of the audit committee is to promote the overall effectiveness of corporate 
governance within the Group, and shareholders are referred to the report of the audit committee contained in the 
annual report. 

The audit committee has explicit authority to investigate any matter in its terms of reference and has access to all 
resources and information it requires to act on this authority.

6. Board and committee meetings and attendance thereof
The Board meets on a regular basis, but at a minimum every three months. The directors are properly briefed in 
respect of special business prior to Board meetings and information is timeously provided to enable them to give 
full consideration to all the issues being dealt with. The directors do make further enquiries where necessary. 

Two Board meetings and three audit committee meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 March 
2010 and one Board meeting and one audit committee have been held subsequent to the year end. Minutes are 
kept of all Board and committee meetings. 

The attendances of the directors at meetings held during the year under review, taking into account their dates of 
appointment and/or resignation, were as follows:

Director/committee

member

% of Board 

meetings 

attended

Number of 

meetings 

attended (2)

% of audit

committee

meetings

attended

Number of

 meetings 

attended (3)

MT Pather 100 2/2 100 3/3
MJ Janse Van Rensburg# 100 1/1 100 2/2
R Manning 100 2/2 100 3/3
N Mariemuthu 100 2/2 n/a n/a
A Gonsalves^ 100 1/1 n/a n/a
MD Mawere 50 1/2 n/a n/a
M Krastanov* 100 2/2 100 3/3
MA Hill 100 2/2 100 3/3

* representing the Designated Advisor

# resigned on 30 October 2009

^ director did not receive notice of a meeting
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Corporate governance report (continued)

6. Board and committee meetings and attendance thereof (continued)

All directors, committee members and the chairman are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting of the 
company. The auditors are required to attend the annual general meeting in compliance with the Corporate Laws 
Amendments Act. 

7. Interests of directors and officers

The register of interests of directors in contracts in terms of Section 234 of the Companies Act, No 61 of 1973  
(as amended), is available to members of the public on request. 

The interests (direct and indirect) of directors and officers in the company’s securities as at 31 March 2010 are 
shown in the table below:

Shares beneficially held
Direct Indirect Total shares Percentage

MT Pather 3 200 000 3 570 375 6 770 375 6,64
P Mariemuthu — — — —
MA Hill — — — —
A Gonsalves — 2 142 225 2 142 225 2,10
MJ Janse van Rensburg — — — —
R Manning — — — —
MD Mawere — — — —

Total 3 200 000 5 712 600 8 912 600 8,74

The restated interests (direct and indirect) of directors and officers in the company’s securities as at 30 June 2009 
are shown in the table below:

Shares beneficially held
Direct Indirect Total shares Percentage

MT Pather 3 200 000 3 570 375 6 770 375 6,64
P Mariemuthu — — — —
MA Hill — — — —
A Gonsalves 10 000 2 142 225 2 152 225 2,11
MJ Janse van Rensburg — — — —
R Manning — — — —
MD Mawere — — — —

Total 3 210 000 5 712 600 8 922 600 8,75

There were no changes to the directors’ interests in the share capital of the company between 31 March 2010 
and the date of posting of this annual report. 

8. Company secretary

The company secretary is required to provide the members of the Board with guidance and advice regarding 
their responsibilities, duties and powers and to ensure that the Board is aware of all legislation relevant to or 
affecting the company. The company secretary is required to ensure that the company complies with all applicable 
legislation regarding the affairs of the company, including the necessary recording of meetings of the Board, 
Board committees and shareholders of the company.
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Corporate governance report (continued)

9. External auditors and audit

The auditors of the Group are PKF Accountants (Pta) Inc. PKF performs an independent and objective audit on 
the Group’s financial statements. The statements are prepared in accordance with the terms of the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the Companies Act. Interim reports are not audited but were reviewed 
by the auditors. The audit committee reviews the audit fees for the audit. The auditors have unrestricted access 
to the audit committee and are invited to all audit committee meetings. The re-appointment of the auditors or 
appointment of new auditors is reviewed by the audit committee.

Non-audit services performed by the auditors were limited to tax services. The audit committee is of the opinion 
that this service does not impair the independence of the auditors. 

10. Accounting and internal controls

The Board has established controls and procedures to ensure the accuracy and integrity of the accounting records 
and monitors the Group’s businesses and their performance. The controls are designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that assets are safeguarded from loss or unauthorised use and that the financial records may be 
relied upon for maintaining accountability for assets and liabilities and preparing the financial statements. The 
statement of directors’ responsibility is set out on page 8. 

11. Internal audit

In order to minimise costs, there is currently no internal audit function within the Group, but this decision is 
reviewed each year by the audit committee.

12. Non-financial matters

AH-Vest subscribes to the highest ethical standards and behaviour in the conduct of its business and related 
activities, and requires total honesty and integrity from its directors and employees. AH-Vest expects its 
shareholders, suppliers and partners to subscribe to the same high ethical standards. 

13. Communications with stakeholders

The Group is committed to ongoing and effective communication with stakeholders. It subscribes to a policy 
of open and timeous communication in line with JSE Limited guidelines and sound corporate governance and 
manages this through its investor relations programme. 

14. Employment, development and employment equity

The company has more than 50% of its staff as black females and more than 75% of the Board is black.

Directors, management and staff

Chairman and CEO 100%
Executives 50%
Non-executives 75%
Management 90%
Staff black women 80%
Equity 40%

AH-Vest has committed itself to equal employment opportunity practices. The company supports Black Economic 
Empowerment measures whereby individuals from designated groups are equipped to acquire new knowledge 
skills, values and confidence. We enforce the right of fundamental equality and opportunity for all employees, as 
well as the right of every person to be protected against unfair discrimination. 
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Corporate governance report (continued)

14. Employment, development and employment equity (continued)

AH-Vest fosters a culture of lifelong learning and we enthusiastically participate in the Government’s National Skills 
Strategy. The company is registered with FOODBEV SETA and aligns itself with best practices in terms of training  
of quality and standard.

All employees, particularly designated Group members, are encouraged to participate in voluntary programmes 
that enhance knowledge and skills. The company offers skills development programmes, learnership and 
social development programmes. Currently 70 employees are involved in learnership and skills development 
programmes which aim to augment their skills sets and long-term work experience. Our social development 
initiatives include training new entrants towards gainful employment into the labour market.

BEE and skills development within the company will remain a strategic focus for AH-Vest going forward.

15. Sustainability reporting

The company is continuing to implement improved controls, efficiencies and the turnaround strategy for the 
company and is conscious of sustainability requirements for both the company, its people and the environment. 

New lightweight, environmentally friendly packaging was introduced in February 2010 for certain of the high 
volume products. Improvement in factory efficiencies and the introduction of focused training have been focuses 
subsequent to year end.

16. Restrictions on trading in the company’s securities

The company enforces closed or restricted periods for dealing in its shares, in terms of which any dealings 
in shares by all directors, senior employees and/or employees with access to price sensitive information and 
their associates is disallowed by the Board from the time that the reporting period has elapsed to the time that 
the results are released and at any time that the company is trading under cautionary announcement or such 
directors and/or employees are in possession of price sensitive information.

17. Transfer office

Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited acts as transfer secretaries to the company. 

18. Going concern

The annual financial statements contained in this annual report have been prepared on the going concern basis. 

The directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for 
the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 
annual financial statements.
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Directors’ responsibilities and approval

The directors are required by the Companies Act, to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible 
for the content and integrity of the Group financial statements and related financial information included in this 
report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the Group financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of 
the Group as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then 
ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to 
express an independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the 
Companies Act, the Listings Requirements for companies listed on the JSE Limited and are based upon 
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and 
estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control 
established by the Group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To 
enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the Board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed 
at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of 
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation 
of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Group and all 
employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Group’s business is conducted 
in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the group 
is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Group. While operating 
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, 
controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and 
constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system 
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation 
of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and 
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2011 and, in the light of 
this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Group has or has access to adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the Group’s financial statements. 
The financial statements have been examined by the Group’s external auditors and their report is presented on  
page 14.

The financial statements set out on pages 14 to 60, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the Board of directors on 30 June 2010 and were signed on its behalf by:

MT Pather P Mariemuthu

Declaration by company secretary

The secretary certifies that, the company has lodged with the Registrar of Companies, all such returns as are  
required of a public company, in terms of section 268G(d) of the Companies Act, No 61 of 1973, as amended and 
that all such returns are true, correct and up to date to the extent that the secretary has been informed.

Arcay Client Support (Proprietary) Limited

(Registration number 1998/025284/07)

Company secretary
30 June 2010
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Directors’ report

The directors submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2010.

1. Incorporation

The AH-Vest Limited was registered and incorporated as a private company in the Republic of South Africa in 
1996 under the name All Joy Foods (Proprietary) Limited and was converted to a public company on 7 December 
1998, listing on the JSE Limited on 21 December 1998.

The company changed its name from All Joy Foods Limited to AH-Vest Limited on the JSE with effect from  
24 December 2008. The All Joy name and brand has been retained to house the food interests of the Group 
going forward.

The company transferred its listing to the Alternative Exchange (“AltX”) of the JSE Limited in 2004.

2. Review of activities

Main business and operations

AH-Vest is involved in the manufacturing and sale of food products and operates principally in South Africa. The 
operating results and state of affairs of the company are fully set out in the attached financial statements and do 
not in our opinion require any further comment.

Net profit of the Group was R1 145 868 (2009: R3 410 901 loss), after taxation of R450 000 (2009: Rnil). The 
profit of R1 145 868 and headline profit for the period of R1 200 528 for the year ended 31 March 2010 showed 
a substantial improvement compared to the prior year loss of R3 410 901.

Operating expenses were reasonably well controlled during the period, despite an increase in key staff. Finance 
costs decreased on the Land Bank facility due to interest rates declining over the period.

3. Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.

This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets 
and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
The company advises that the going concern of the company is dependent on the continued support of its main 
financier, namely the Land Bank of South Africa.

4. Post balance sheet events

Per the SENS release on 24 August 2010 the appeal board of the Financial Services Board ("FSB") has dismissed 
appeals against fines imposed against the company. See note 33 for more details.

5. Directors’ interest in contracts

Purple Rain Design (Proprietary) Limited is the sole supplier of graphic design services to the Group. The related 
party is a close member of the family of the Chief Executive Officer.

6. Accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted for purposes of this report comply, and have been consistently applied in all 
material respects, with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). These results have been prepared 
in terms of accounting policies consistent with the prior year.
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Directors’ report (continued)

7. Authorised and issued share capital

The authorised and issued share capital of the company as at 31 March 2010 is set out in note 12 to the annual  
financial statements. As at 31 March 2010, there were 101 973 333 issued ordinary shares and 398 026 667 
unissued ordinary shares. There was no change in the authorised share capital during the period under review.

8. Dividends

The directors have decided not to declare a dividend for the period under review.

9. Directors

The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Date appointed Date resigned

MT Pather 18 March 1989
P Mariemuthu 25 August 2008
MA Hill 16 September 2008
A Gonsalves 25 August 2008
MD Mawere 25 August 2008
R Manning 25 August 2008
MJ van Rensburg 25 August 2008 30 October 2009

Mr MT Pather remains as Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Shareholders are further advised of the retirement 
from the board of AH-Vest, non-executive director Mrs Martie Jacoba Janse van Rensburg. The Board would like 
to thank Martie for her valuable contribution to the company over the past year. Ms Martie van Rensburg, non-
executive director, rotated off the Board with effect from 30 October 2009.

Furthermore, since the last Board meeting of the company held in February 2010, the Board resolved that  
Mr Parmanathan Mariemuthu will change his role from executive chairman to non-executive chairman and  
Mr Antonio Gonsalves, who has resigned as an employee of the Group, will remain as a non-executive director.

10. Secretary

The company secretary remained unchanged during the period under review. The secretary of the company is  
Arcay Client Support (Pty) Limited of:

Business address:

Arcay House II

Number 3 Anerley Road

Parktown

2193

11. Interest in subsidiaries

The company has two subsidiaries as at the date of this report, namely All Joy Property Holdings (Proprietary) 
Limited and All Joy Foods (Proprietary)  Limited.

Details of the company’s investment in subsidiaries are set out in note 5 of the annual financial statements.
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Directors’ report (continued)

12. Auditors

PKF (Pta) Inc. accountants and business advisers acted as the company’s auditors for the period ended 31 March 
2010 and will continue in office in accordance with section 270(2) of the Companies Act, 1973, as amended. The 
audit committee have confirmed that it is satisfied with the independence of the auditors in accordance with the 
New Corporate Amendments Act.

13. Future prospects

The company is committed as a black organically grown enterprise, to be the most competitive, focusing on its 
experience to recognise local tastes. The cost reduction program on packaging material was implemented in 
March 2010 using alternate lower cost packaging material and upgrading production lines to handle the change.

This improvement is a process and the company is mindful of ensuring and maintaining its high quality standard 
that its brands are known for.

The company also intends to use its 21 year old brand platform to expand into new products.

The outlook for 2011 is positive and the company aims to increase the distribution on its veri peri brand and 
extend the range. The new light weight environmentally friendly 750ml plastic bottle and 2lt All Joy tomato sauce 
is expected to boost the company’s performance and the company will launch an “out-of-home” range for summer 
braai’s and eating out.

MT Pather P Mariemuthu
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Report of the audit committee for the year ended 31 March 2010

The report of the audit committee is presented as required by Sections 269A and 270A of the Companies Act of 
South Africa, as part of the measures contained in the Corporate Laws Amendments Act 2006.

Functions and responsibilities of the audit committee

The role of the audit committee is to assist the Board by performing an objective and independent review of the 
functioning of the organisation’s finance and accounting control mechanisms. It exercises its functions through 
close liaison and communication with corporate management and the external auditors.

The committee is guided by its terms of reference, dealing with membership, structure and levels of authority and 
has the following responsibilities: 

• ensuring compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements of regulatory authorities;

• nominating for appointment a registered auditor who, in the opinion of the audit committee, is independent of  
the company; 

• matters relating to financial accounting, accounting policies, reporting and disclosure; 

• satisfying itself that the financial director has appropriate expertise and experience;

• internal and external audit policy including determination of fees and terms of engagement; 

• activities, scope, adequacy, and effectiveness of the internal audit function and audit plans; 

• review/approval of external audit plans, findings, problems, reports, fees and determination and approval of 
any non-audit services that the auditor may provide to the company; 

• compliance with the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct; and 

• compliance with the company’s code of ethics. 

The audit committee addressed its responsibilities properly in terms of the charter during the 2010 financial year.  
No changes to the charter were adopted during the 2010 financial year.  In addition, the committee has established 
a policy as well as required procedures with regard to the use of the external auditors for non-audit services.

Members of the audit committee

The audit committee consisted of two independent non-executive directors and a representative from the 
company’s Designated Advisor in accordance with the JSE Limited’s Listings Requirements relating to the 
Alternative Exchange: 

MJJ van Rensburg (chairperson)

R Manning (member)

M Krastanov (member)

During the year, MJJ van Rensburg resigned from the Board of directors and Ms R Manning assumed the 
role of chairperson. Pursuant to the company’s year end and in accordance with changes to the JSE Listings 
Requirements, the JSE no longer requires that a representative of the Designated Advisor be a member of the 
audit committee and accordingly, subsequent to year end, Mrs MJ Krastanov has resigned as a member of the 
audit committee. The Board is considering the appointment of new independent non-executive directors, who will 
in turn be appointed to the audit committee.
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Report of the audit committee (continued)

Frequency of meetings

The committee met three times during the 2010 financial year. Provision is made for additional meetings to be 
held, when and if, necessary.

Independence of external audit

One of the responsibilities of the audit committee was the assessment of the independence of the external 
auditor. The committee is satisfied that the external auditor is independent of the company and Group. The 
external auditor has also confirmed that its personnel are independent of the company and Group.

Expertise and experience of financial director

As required by JSE Listings Requirements 3.84(h), the audit committee has satisfied itself that the financial 
director has appropriate expertise and experience.

Financial statements

Management has reviewed the financial statements with the audit committee, and the audit committee has 
reviewed them without management or external auditors being present. The quality of the accounting policies 
are discussed with the external auditors. The audit committee considers the financial statements of AH-Vest 
Limited to be a fair presentation of its financial position on the 31 March 2010 and of the results of the operations, 
changes in equity and cash flows for the period ended then, in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the Companies Act.

Chairperson
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Independent auditor’s report

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the annual financial statements and Group annual financial statements of AH-Vest Limited, 
which comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the statements of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, and the directors’ report, as set out on pages  
14 to 60.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Act 
of South Africa. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates 
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditors considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of AH-Vest 
Limited Group as at 31 March 2010, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Act 
of South Africa.

PKF (Pta) Inc. Per: Sanjay Ranchhoojee

Registered auditors 30 June 2010

Registration number:  2000/026635/21 Erasmus Forum

434 Rigel Avenue South, Erasmusrand,

Pretoria 0081
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Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2010

Group Company

31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009

Note(s) R R R R

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 11 550 430 12 552 350 5 128 748 5 891 509
Other intangible assets 4 1 110 206 1 184 613 1 110 206 1 184 613
Investments in subsidiaries 5 — — 100 100
Loans to Group companies 6 — — 2 532 960 2 435 924
Deferred tax 8 450 000 — 450 000 —

13 110 636 13 736 963 9 222 014 9 512 146

Current assets

Inventories 9 12 160 883 11 918 933 12 160 883 11 918 933
Loans to fellow subsidiary 6 2 500 248 2 171 560 2 500 248 2 171 560
Trade and other receivables 10 11 708 017 12 796 200 11 708 017 12 796 200
Cash and cash equivalents 11 4 678 891 2 053 315 4 678 791 2 053 215

31 048 039 28 940 008 31 047 939 28 939 908

Total assets 44 158 675 42 676 971 40 269 953 38 452 054

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Share capital 12 21 293 071 21 293 071 21 293 071 21 293 071
Reserves 4 688 610 4 688 610 — —
Accumulated loss (8 093 658) (9 239 526) (7 267 105) (8 749 167)

17 888 023 16 742 155 14 025 966 12 543 904

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Finance lease obligation 14 40 906 90 830 40 906 90 830
Operating lease liability 120 042 — 120 042 —

160 948 90 830 160 948 90 830

Current liabilities

Other financial liabilities 13 14 353 321 14 438 173 14 353 321 14 438 173
Finance lease obligation 14 41 390 66 256 41 390 66 256
Trade and other payables 16 11 714 993 10 789 557 11 688 328 10 762 891
Provisions 15 — 550 000 — 550 000

26 109 704 25 843 986 26 083 039 25 817 320

Total liabilities 26 270 652 25 934 816 26 243 987 25 908 150

Total equity and liabilities 44 158 675 42 676 971 40 269 953 38 452 054
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Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2010

Group Company

Note(s)

2010

R

9 months

ended

31 March

2009

R

2010

R

9 months

ended

31 March

2009

R

Revenue 18 77 545 096 55 001 578 77 545 096 55 001 578

Cost of sales (50 778 111) (37 911 510) (50 778 111) (37 911 510)

Gross profit 26 766 985 17 090 068 26 766 985 17 090 068

Other income 1 283 354 2 163 309 1 283 354 2 163 309

Operating expenses (26 156 196) (21 563 577) (26 073 298) (21 318 753)

Operating profit/(loss) 19 1 894 143 (2 310 200) 1 977 041 (2 065 376)
Investment revenue 21 351 708 405 192 605 004 650 729
Finance costs 22 (1 549 983) (1 505 893) (1 549 983) (1 505 893)

Profit/(loss) before taxation 695 868 (3 410 901) 1 032 062 (2 920 540)
Taxation 23 450 000 — 450 000 —

Profit/(loss) for the year 1 145 868 (3 410 901) 1 482 062 (2 920 540)

Other comprehensive income:
Gains and losses on property  
revaluation — 720 739 — —
Taxation related to components of 
other comprehensive income — (201 807) — —

Other comprehensive income for 
the year net of taxation 25 — 518 932 — —

Total comprehensive income/(loss) 1 145 868 (2 891 969) 1 482 062 (2 920 540)

Basic earnings per share 34 1,12 (3,54)
Diluted earnings per share 34 1,12 (3,54)
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Statements of cash flows

Group Company

9 months 9 months
ended ended

31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009

Note(s) R R R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 26 4 531 165 (7 605 878) 4 374 905 (7 600 213)
Interest income 351 708 405 192 605 004 650 729
Finance costs (1 549 983) (1 505 893) (1 549 983) (1 505 893)
Tax paid 27 — (1 663 986) — (1 663 986)

Net cash from operating activities 3 332 890 (10 370 565) 3 429 926 (10 119 363)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and 
equipment

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and 
equipment

3

3

(253 919)

34 935

(233 128)

1 197

(253 919)

34 935

(233 128)

1 197
Loans advanced to Group companies (328 688) (2 171 560) (425 724) (2 422 762)

Net cash from investing activities (547 672) (2 403 491) (644 708) (2 654 693)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds on share issue 12 — 600 000 — 600 000
Net proceeds on share rights issue – 
share premium 12 — 13 849 496 — 13 849 496
Repayment of other financial liabilities (84 852) (1 229 133) (84 852) (1 229 133)
Repayment of shareholders loan — — — —
Finance lease payments (74 790) (79 934) (74 790) (79 934)

Net cash from financing activities (159 642) 13 140 429 (159 642) 13 140 429

Total cash movement for the year 2 625 576 366 373 2 625 576 366 373
Cash at the beginning of the year 2 053 315 1 686 942 2 053 215 1 686 842

Total cash at end of the year 11 4 678 891 2 053 315 4 678 791 2 053 215
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Accounting policies

1. Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the 
Companies Act of South Africa and the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited. The financial statements have 
been prepared on the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Consolidation

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and all entities, 
including special purpose entities, which are controlled by the company.

Control exists when the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as 
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the effective date of 
acquisition to the effective date of disposal.

Adjustments are made when necessary to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies 
in line with those of the Group.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

1.2 Accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and 
the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from 
these estimates which may be material to the financial statements. 

Significant judgements include:

Trade receivables and trade payables

Normal trade credit terms in South Africa have been judged to be equal to 60 days. Where trade receivables 
and payables are settled beyond the normal trade credit terms, the transaction is deemed to include a financing 
arrangement. The resulting trade receiveable or trade payable is discounted from the date of settlement to day  
60 using an appropriate discount rate. The Group discounts its trade receivables using a discount rate equivalent 
to that which it could earn on funds placed on call for a similar term. Trade payables are discounted using the 
Group’s incremental borrowing rate which it could obtain from its commercial bankers for borrowing funds on 
similar terms.

The Group assesses its trade receivables for impairment at each balance sheet date. In determining whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements as to whether there 
is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for 
national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate 
with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to  
the estimated loss emergence period.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.2 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock

The stock provision is based on average loss rates of stock in recent months. The provision makes use of stock 
counts performed which is considered to representative of all stock items held.

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate 
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the 
future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial 
instruments.

Impairment testing

The Group reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that 
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. In addition, indefnite life intangible assets is tested on an annual basis 
for impairment. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of 
cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are 
prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine 
the value in use of goodwill and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. 
They are significantly affected by a number of factors including consumer demands and consumer preferences.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional 
disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note 15 – Provisions.

Taxation

The Group recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable 
that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of 
deferred income tax assets requires the Group to make significant estimates related to expectations of future

taxable income. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the 
application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ 
significantly from estimates, the ability of the Group to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the balance 
sheet date could be impacted.

Residual values and useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment

Plant and machinery

Due to specialised nature of the Group’s plant and machinery, the residual value attached to these assets has 
been estimated to be nil. The Group estimates that the useful life of the plant and machinery, being the period of 
time for which the assets can be utilised without significant modifications, replacements or improvements is 10 
years based on current levels of production and repairs and maintenance costs incurred.

Motor vehicles

The entity has a policy of utilising all motor vehicles for a period of five years. It is estimated that passenger 
vehicles have a residual value approximating 30% of its initial purchase price.

Patents and trademarks

The Group has classified its purchased brands as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives due to the long-term 
nature of the production use of these brands. The intangible assets are expected to continue to generate future 
revenue for as long as the entity’s product remains in demand.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

•  it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and

•  the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs 
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying 
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the 
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the 
revalued amount of the asset.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised to other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. The increase is recognised in profit or loss to the 
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss in the 
current period. The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance 
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other comprehensive 
income reduces the amount accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly 
to retained earnings on date of sale of the asset.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their 
estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Land and buildings is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient 
regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair 
value at the end of the reporting period.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited to other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. The increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that 
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss in the 
current period. The decrease is debited in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing 
in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Property, plant and equipmnt (continued) 

Item Average useful life

Land Indefinite
Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years 
Furniture and fixtures 12 years
Motor vehicles  5 years
Office equipment  5 years
IT equipment  8 years
Computer software  3 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Laboratory equipment 10 years
Pallets   5 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting 
estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount  
of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or 
loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount  
of the item.

1.4 Other intangible assets

An intangible assets is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; 
and

• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are shown at a historical cost less impairment losses.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it  
is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised 
when:

• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

•  there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

• there is an ability to use or sell it.

• it will generate probable future economic benefits.

•  there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell 
the asset.

•  the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Other intangible assets (continued)

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is 
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is 
not provided for these other intangible assets. For all other other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a 
straight line basis over their useful life.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a definite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an 
indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying 
amount is amortised over its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not 
recognised as intangible assets.

Item Useful life

Brand names Indeterminate

1.5 Investments in subsidiaries 

Company financial statements

In the company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any 
accumulated impairment.

The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of:

•  the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments 
issued by the company; plus

•  any costs directly attributable to the purchase of the subsidiary.

1.6 Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments.

The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a 
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not 
determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available for sale financial assets.

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the 
initial measurement of the instrument.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less 
accumulated impairment losses.



AH-Vest Limited
(Registration number 1989/000100/06)
Annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010

24

Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Financial instruments (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets

At each statements of financial position date the Group assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value 
through profit or loss, to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 
assets has been impaired.

For amounts due to the Group, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter 
bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying 
amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying 
amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for equity investments classified as 
available-for-sale.

Impairment losses are also not subsequently reversed for available-for-sale equity investments which are held at 
cost because fair value was not determinable.

Loans to/(from) Group companies

These include loans to and from holding companies, fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 
and are recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs.

Loans to Group companies are classified as loans and receivables.

Loans to shareholders, directors, managers and employees

These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are 
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default 
or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is 
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the 
loss is recognised in the income statement within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, 
it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
written off are credited against operating expenses in the income statement.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Financial instruments (continued) 

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.

Bank overdraft and borrowings

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and 
the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the 
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments, which are not designated as hedging instruments, consisting of foreign exchange 
contracts, are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and are re-measured to fair value at subsequent 
reporting dates.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other non-financial host contracts are treated as separate 
derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host 
contract is not carried at fair value with unrealised gains or losses reported in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in profit or loss as they arise. Derivatives 
are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss – held for trading.

1.7 Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already 
paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised 
as an asset.

Current tax liabilities/(assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid 
to/(recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the statements of financial position date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax 
liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit/(tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax 
asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit/(tax loss).
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.7 Tax (continued) 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, 
except to the extent that the tax arises from:

• a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, directly in equity; or

• a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited 
or charged, in the same or a different period, directly to equity.

1.8 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership.

Finance leases – lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair value of 
the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to 
the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit 
in the lease.

The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability.The 
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on 
the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The 
difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments is recognised as an 
operating lease liability. This liability is not discounted.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.9 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for 
all inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.9 Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and 
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of 
any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are recognised as 
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. The 
reversal of a write-down is limited as the value of inventory cannot be increased to an amount above that which 
would have been recognised had no impairment initially been recognised.

1.10 Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired if 
any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the Group also:

• tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment 
annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed 
during the annual period and at the same time every period.

• tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual 
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of 
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and 
its value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the cash-generating 
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the 
carrying amount of the units. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the 
unit in the following order:

• first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit; and

• then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in 
prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
for the asset in prior periods.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Impairment of assets (continued) 

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than 
goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated 
as a revaluation increase. This increase is however limited to the assets original cost price less accumulated 
depreciation or amortisation as if the asset was never impaired.

1.11 Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all 
of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

1.12 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (such as paid vacation leave and bonuses), are recognised in the 
period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that 
increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments 
made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans 
where the Group’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement 
benefit plan.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:

• the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; 
and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, 
the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount 

recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are not recognised for 
future operating losses.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.13 Provisions and contingencies (continued)

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and 
measured as a provision.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that are recognised 
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:

• the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

• the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note.

1.14 Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

• the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

• the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership 
nor effective control over the goods sold;

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

• the costs incurred, or to be incurred in respect of the transaction, can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts, volume 
rebates and value added tax.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

1.15 Cost of sales
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and 
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of 
any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a 
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.16 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.17 Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

At each balance sheet date:

• foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;

• non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

• non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.17 Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates 
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial 
statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised directly in equity, any exchange component of that gain 
or loss is recognised directly in equity. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, 
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the 
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

IAS 1 (AC 101) (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

The main revisions to IAS 1 (AC 101):

• Require the presentation of non-owner changes in equity either in a single statement of comprehensive income 
or in an income statement and statement of comprehensive income.

• Require the presentation of a statements of financial position at the beginning of the earliest comparative period 
whenever a retrospective adjustment is made. This requirement includes related notes.

• Require the disclosure of income tax and reclassification adjustments relating to each component of other 
comprehensive income. The disclosures may be presented on the face of the statement of comprehensive 
income or in the notes.

• Allow dividend presentations to be made either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes only.

• Have changed the titles to some of the financial statement components, where the ‘balance sheet’ becomes 
the ‘statement of financial position’ and the ‘cash flow statement’ becomes the ‘statement of cash flows.’ These 
new titles will be used in International Financial Reporting Standards, but are not mandatory for use in financial 
statements.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The Group has adopted the 
standard for the first time in the 2010 financial statements.

The adoption of this standard has not had a material impact on the results of the company, but has resulted in 
more disclosure than would have previously been provided in the financial statements.

2.2 Standards and interpretations early adopted
The Group has chosen not to early adopt any the standards and/or interpretations.

2.3 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant
The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting 
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2010 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations:

IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

– Measurement of the cost of investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates when adopting 
IFRS for the first time (effective from 1 July 2009)

– Amendments relating to oil and gas assets and determining whether an arrangement contains a lease (effective 
from 1 January 2010)
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Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant (continued) 

IFRS 2, Share Based Payments

– Amendments to vesting conditions and cancellations (effective from 1 January 2009)
– Clarification of scope of IFRS 2 and IFRS 3 revised (effective 1 July 2009)

– Accounting for group cash-settled share-based payment transactions – clarity of the definition of the term 
“Group” (effective from January 2010)

IFRS 3, Business Combinations

– Amendments to accounting for business combinations (effective from 1 July 2009)

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

– Plan to sell the controlling interest in a subsidiary (effective from 1 July 2009)

– Disclosures of non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued effective from 
(effective from 1 January 2010)

– Amendments resulting from IFRIC 17 for assets held for distribution to owners (effective from 1 July 2009)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

– Presentation of finance costs (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Amendment dealing with improving disclosures relating to Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 
2009)

– Amendments enhancing disclosures relating to fair value and liquidity risk (effective from 1 January 2009)

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

– New standard on segment reporting (replaces IAS 14) (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Disclosure of information about segment assets (effective from 1 January 2010)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

– New standard that forms the first part of a three part project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement (effective from 1 January 2013)

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

– Cash flows from assets held for rental classified as operating activities (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Classification of expenditures on unrecognised assets (effective from 1 January 2010)

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

– Status of implementation guidance (effective from 1 January 2009)

IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period

– Dividends declared after the end of the reporting period (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Amendment resulting from the issue of IFRIC 17 (effective from 1 July 2009)

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

– Recoverable amount definitions (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Accounting for sale of assets held for rental (effective from 1 January 2009)

IAS 17 Leases

– Classification of leases of land and buildings (effective from 1 January 2010)



AH-Vest Limited
(Registration number 1989/000100/06)
Annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010

32
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2.3 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant (continued) 

IAS 18 Revenue

– Costs of originating a loan (effective from 1 January 2009)

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

– Curtailments and negative past service cost (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Plan administration costs (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Replacement of term ‘fall due’ (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Guidance on contingent liabilities (effective from 1 January 2009)

IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance

– Government loans with a below-market rate of interest (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Consistency of terminology with other IFRSs (effective from 1 January 2009)

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

– Amendment requiring capitalisation only model (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Components of borrowing costs (effective from 1 January 2009)

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosure

– Simplification of the disclosure requirements for government related entities (effective from 1 January 2011)

– Clarification of the definition of related party (effective from 1 January 2011)

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

– Amendment dealing with measurement of the cost of investments when adopting IFRS for the first time  
(effective from 1 January 2009)

– Consequential amendments from changes to Business Combinations (effective from 1 July 2009)

– Measurement of subsidiary held for sale in separate financial statements (effective from 1 July 2009)

IAS 28 Investments in Associates

– Required disclosures when investments in associates are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss 
(effective from 1 January 2009)

– Impairment of investment in associates (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Consequential amendments from changes to Business Combinations (effective from 1 July 2009)

IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

– Description of measurement basis in financial statements (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Consistency of terminology with other IFRSs (effective from 1 January 2009)

IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures

– Required disclosures when interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for at fair value through profit  
or loss (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Consequential amendments from changes to Business Combinations (effective from 1 July 2009)

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

– Certain financial instruments will be classified as equity whereas, prior to these amendments, they would have 
been classified as financial liabilities (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Accounting for rights issues (including rights, options or warrants) that are denominated in a currency other than 
the functional currency of the Issuer (effective from 1 February 2010)
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2.3 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant (continued) 

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

– Earnings per share disclosures in interim financial reports (effective from 1 January 2009)

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

– Disclosure of estimates used to determine recoverable amount (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Unit of accounting for goodwill impairment test (effective from 1 January 2010)

IAS 38 Intangible Assets

– Advertising and promotional activities (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Unit of production method of amortisation (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Additional consequential amendments arising from revised IFRS 3 (effective from 1 July 2009)

– Measuring the fair value of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination (effective from 1 July 2009)

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

– Reclassification of derivatives into or out of the classification of at fair value through profit or loss (effective from  
1 January 2009)

– Designating and documenting hedges at the segment level (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Applicable effective interest rate on cessation of fair value hedge accounting (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Clarifies two hedge accounting issues: Inflation in a financial hedged item (effective from 1 July 2009)

– A one-sided risk in a hedged item (effective from 1 July 2009)

– Amendments for embedded derivatives when reclassifying financial instruments (Annual periods ending on or 
after 30 June 2009)

– Treating loan prepayment penalties as closely related embedded derivatives (effective from 1 January 2010)

– Scope exemption for business combination contracts (effective from 1 January 2010)

– Cash flow hedge accounting (effective from 1 January 2010)

IAS 40 Investment Property

– Property under construction or development for future use as investment property (effective from 1 January 
2009)

– Consistency of terminology with IAS 8 (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Investment property held under lease (effective from 1 January 2009)

IAS 41 Agriculture

– Discount rate for fair value calculations (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Additional biological transformation (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Examples of agricultural produce and products (effective from 1 January 2009)

– Point-of-sale costs (effective from 1 January 2009)

IFRIC 9 (amended) Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

– Scope of IFRIC 9 and revised IFRS 3 (effective from 1 July 2009)

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements (effective from 1 January 2008)

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective from 1 July 2008)
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2.3 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant (continued) 

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their 
Interaction (effective 1 January 2008)

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their 
Interaction

– Amendments relating to the recognition as assets of some voluntary prepayments for minimum funding 
contributions (effective 1 January 2011)

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effective from 1 January 2009) 

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (effective from 1 October 2008) 

IFRIC 16 (amended) Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

– Amendment to the restriction on the entity the entity that can hold hedging Instruments (effective from 1 July 
2009)

IFRIC 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners (effective from 1 July 2009) 

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (effective from 1 July 2009)

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments (effective from 1 July 2010)

Management has assessed the impact of these amendments and standards on the reported results of the 
company and concluded that it is unlikely that they will have a material impact on the companies annual financial 
statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

3. Property, plant and equipment

Group

2010 2009

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying Cost/ Accumulated Carrying
Valuation depreciation value Valuation depreciation value

Land 2 116 814 — 2 116 814 2 116 814 — 2 116 814
Buildings 4 783 186 (478 318) 4 304 868 4 783 186 (239 159) 4 544 027
Plant and machinery 8 718 570 (5 144 521) 3 574 049 8 533 749 (4 672 342) 3 861 407
Furniture and 
fixtures 818 229 (540 036) 278 193 808 580 (507 363) 301 217
Motor vehicles 719 534 (516 933) 202 601 719 534 (482 524) 237 010
Office equipment 372 113 (279 873) 92 240 367 728 (208 163) 159 565
IT equipment 327 058 (169 548) 157 510 339 494 (129 239) 210 255
Computer software 308 455 (291 804) 16 651 302 237 (191 998) 110 239
Leasehold 
improvements 1 975 472 (1 217 392) 758 080 1 975 472 (1 019 304) 956 168
Laboratory 
equipment 155 239 (108 124) 47 115 155 239 (104 026) 51 213
Pallets 13 013 (10 704) 2 309 13 013 (8 578) 4 435

Total 20 307 683 (8 757 253) 11 550 430 20 115 046 (7 562 696) 12 552 350

Company

2010 2009

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying Cost/ Accumulated Carrying
Valuation depreciation value Valuation depreciation value

Plant and machinery 8 718 570 (5 144 521) 3 574 049 8 533 749 (4 672 342) 3 861 407
Furniture and 
fixtures 818 229 (540 036) 278 193 808 580 (507 363) 301 217
Motor vehicles 719 534 (516 933) 202 601 719 534 (482 524) 237 010
Office equipment 372 113 (279 873) 92 240 367 728 (208 163) 159 565
Computer 
equipment 327 058 (169 548) 157 510 339 494 (129 239) 210 255
Computer software 308 455 (291 804) 16 651 302 237 (191 998) 110 239
Leasehold 
improvements 1 975 472 (1 217 392) 758 080 1 975 472 (1 019 304) 956 168
Laboratory 
equipment 155 239 (108 124) 47 115 155 239 (104 026) 51 213
Pallets 13 013 (10 704) 2 309 13 013 (8 578) 4 435

Total 13 407 683 (8 278 935) 5 128 748 13 215 046 (7 323 537) 5 891 509
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment

Group

2010

Opening
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Land 2 116 814 — — — 2 116 814
Buildings 4 544 027 — — (239 159) 4 304 868
Plant and machinery 3 861 407 233 667 (3 085) (517 940) 3 574 049
Furniture and fixtures 301 217 9 649 — (32 673) 278 193
Motor vehicles 237 010 — — (34 409) 202 601
Office equipment 159 565 4 385 — (71 710) 92 240
IT equipment 210 255 — (12 436) (40 309) 157 510
Computer software 110 239 6 218 — (99 806) 16 651
Leasehold improvements 956 168 — — (198 088) 758 080
Laboratory equipment 51 213 — — (4 098) 47 115
Pallets 4 435 — — (2 126) 2 309

12 552 350 253 919 (15 521) (1 240 318) 11 550 430

Group

2009

Opening
balance Additions Disposals Revaluations Depreciation Total

Land 1 957 614 — — 159 200 — 2 116 814
Buildings 4 423 454 — — 359 732 (239 159) 4 544 027
Plant and machinery 4 156 279 93 585 — — (388 457) 3 861 407
Furniture and fixtures 316 931 8 791 — — (24 505) 301 217
Motor vehicles 177 991 84 826 — — (25 807) 237 010
Office equipment 197 799 15 446 — — (53 680) 159 565
IT equipment 213 008 27 480 — — (30 233) 210 255
Computer software 182 095 3 000 — — (74 856) 110 239
Leasehold improvements 1 104 734 — — — (148 566) 956 168
Laboratory equipment 55 484 — (1 197) — (3 074) 51 213
Pallets 6 029 — — — (1 594) 4 435

12 791 418 233 128 (1 197) 518 932 (989 931) 12 552 350
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment (continued)

Company

2010

Opening
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Plant and machinery 3 861 407 233 667 (3 085) (517 940) 3 574 049
Furniture and fixtures 301 217 9 649 — (32 673) 278 193
Motor vehicles 237 010 — — (34 409) 202 601
Office equipment 159 565 4 385 — (71 710) 92 240
Computer equipment 210 255 — (12 436) (40 309) 157 510
Computer software 110 239 6 218 — (99 806) 16 651
Leasehold improvements 956 168 — — (198 088) 758 080
Laboratory equipment 51 213 — — (4 098) 47 115
Pallets 4 435 — — (2 126) 2 309

5 891 509 253 919 (15 521) (1 001 159) 5 128 748

Company

2009

Opening
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Plant and machinery 4 156 279 93 585 — (388 457) 3 861 407
Furniture and fixtures 316 931 8 791 — (24 505) 301 217
Motor vehicles 177 991 84 826 — (25 807) 237 010
Office equipment 197 799 15 446 — (53 680) 159 565
Computer equipment 213 008 27 480 — (30 233) 210 255
Computer software 182 095 3 000 — (74 856) 110 239
Leasehold improvements 1 104 734 — — (148 566) 956 168
Laboratory equipment 55 484 — (1 197) (3 074) 51 213
Pallets 6 029 — — (1 594) 4 435

6 410 350 233 128 (1 197) (750 772) 5 891 509
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Pledged as security
Carrying value of assets pledged as security:
Property plant and equipment 3 574 049 5 811 151 3 574 049 5 811 151
Assets are pledged as security for the loan 
from the Land Bank. See note 13 for detail 
of the liability.
Assets subject to finance lease 
(net carrying amount)
Leasehold improvements 758 080 956 168 758 080 956 168

Revaluations
The effective date of the revaluations was 
25 May 2009. Revaluations were performed 
by independent valuer, Mr Edward Gus Bonini, 
appraiser for the District of Johannesburg to the 
Master of the High Court, Gauteng Province. 
Mr Edward Gus Bonini is not connected to the 
Group.

Land and buildings are re-valued independently 
every three years.

The valuation was performed using the direct 
comparison method where the property is 
compared to equal property size and relevant 
adjustments made for building size.

These assumptions were based on current 
market conditions present at 31 March 2009.

No revaluation was performed in the current 
year as the fair value is not materially different 
from the value as displayed for land and 
buildings.

The carrying value of the revalued assets under 
the cost model would have been:

Land 678 421 678 421 — —
Buildings 1 386 974 1 532 970 — —
A register containing the information required 
by paragraph 22(3) of Schedule 4 of the 
Companies Act is available for inspection at  
the registered office of the company.
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4. Other intangible assets

Group

2010 2009

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying Cost/ Accumulated Carrying
Valuation depreciation value Valuation depreciation value

Patents, trademarks 
and other rights 334 748 — 334 748 334 748 — 334 748
Brand names 775 458 — 775 458 849 865 — 849 865

Total 1 110 206 — 1 110 206 1 184 613 — 1 184 613

Company

2010 2009

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying Cost/ Accumulated Carrying
Valuation depreciation value Valuation depreciation value

Patents, trademarks 
and other rights 334 748 — 334 748 334 748 — 334 748
Brand names 775 458 — 775 458 849 865 — 849 865

Total 1 110 206 — 1 110 206 1 184 613 — 1 184 613

Reconciliation of other intangible assets

Group

2010

Opening

balance

Impairment

loss Total

Patents, trademarks and other rights 334 748 — 334 748
Brand names 849 865 (74 407) 775 458

1 184 613 (74 407) 1 110 206

Group

2009

Opening

balance

Impairment

loss Total

Patents, trademarks and other rights 334 748 — 334 748
Brand names 849 865 — 849 865

1 184 613 — 1 184 613
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4. Other intangible assets (continued)

Reconciliation of other intangible assets (continued)

Company

2010

Opening

balance

Impairment

loss Total

Patents, trademarks and other rights 334 748 — 334 748
Brand names 849 865 (74 407) 775 458

1 184 613 (74 407) 1 110 206

Company

2009

Opening

balance

Impairment

loss Total

Patents, trademarks and other rights 334 748 — 334 748
Brand names 849 865 — 849 865

1 184 613 — 1 184 613

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Pledged as security
Carrying value of intangible assets pledged as 
security:
Brands 1 110 206 1 184 613 1 110 206 1 184 613
Used to secure borrowings granted to the  
Group by the Land Bank of R14 353 321  
(2009: R14 438 173) – refer note 13.
Other information
Intangible assets with indefinite lives:
Trademarks 1 110 206 1 184 613 1 110 206 1 184 613

The useful life of Gold Band trade mark is considered indefinite. It is not bound by any expiry period as there 
is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash flows for the Group.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, an entity shall also test an intangible asset with 
an indefinite useful life for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount was calculated using the value in use of the asset.
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4. Other intangible assets (continued)

Key assumptions
1.  Cash flow projection over 5 year period was used.
2.  The intangible asset will perform consistently with the remainder of the entity operations showing 8% growth 

per year.
3.  Entity weighted average cost of capital is 12%.
4.  Expenses attributable to the asset is a fixed percentage of revenue.

5. Investment in subsidiaries

% Holding % Holding
Carrying 
amount

Carrying 
amount

Name of company Held by 2010 2009 2010 2009

All Joy Property Holdings (Pty) Ltd AH-Vest 100 100 100 100

The carrying amounts of 
subsidiaries are shown net of 
impairment losses.

6. Loans to/(from) Group companies

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Subsidiaries
All Joy Property Holdings (Pty) Ltd — — 2 532 960 2 435 924

The loan is unsecured, bears interest at the 
prime interest rate and will be repaid once the 
property is sold.

Fellow subsidiaries
Africa Heritage Power Solutions (Pty) Ltd

The loan is unsecured, bear interest at 15,5% 
and is to be repaid in one year in a single 
payment. 2 500 248 2 171 560 2 500 248 2 171 560

Non-current assets — — 2 532 960 2 435 924
Current assets 2 500 248 2 171 560 2 500 248 2 171 560

2 500 248 2 171 560 5 033 208 4 607 484



AH-Vest Limited
(Registration number 1989/000100/06)
Annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010

42

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6. Loans to/(from) Group companies (continued)

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Credit quality of loans to Group companies
The credit quality of loans to Group companies 
that are neither past due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to external credit ratings 
(if available) or to historical information about 
counterparty default rates:
Credit rating
Unsecured 2 500 248 2 171 560 4 957 126 4 607 484

Fair value of loans to and from Group 
companies
Loans to Group companies 2 500 248 2 171 560 4 957 126 4 607 484
The carrying value less impairment of loans to 
Group companies are assumed to approximate 
their fair values.

7. Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Group

2010

Loans and
receivables

Fair value
through profit

 or loss – held
for trading

Fair value
through profit

 or loss –
 designated

Held to
maturity

 investments
Available

for sale

Loans to fellow subsidiary 2 500 248 — — — —
Trade and other receivables 11 639 897 — — — —
Cash and cash equivalents 4 614 356 — — — —

18 754 501 — — — —

Group

2009

Loans and
 receivables

Fair value
through profit
or loss – held

for trading

Fair value
through profit

or loss –
 designated

Held to
maturity

investments
Available 

for sale

Loans to fellow subsidiary 2 171 560 — — — —
Trade and other receivables 12 243 971 — — — —
Cash and cash equivalents 2 053 315 — — — —

16 468 846 — — — —
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7. Financial assets by category (continued)

Company

2010

Loans and
receivables

Fair value
through profit

 or loss – held
for trading

Fair value
through profit

 or loss –
 designated

Held to
maturity

 investments
Available

for sale

Loans to fellow subsidiary 2 500 248 — — — —
Loans to subsidiary 2 456 878 — — — —
Trade and other receivables 11 639 897 — — — —
Cash and cash equivalents 4 614 256 — — — —

21 211 279 — — — —

Company

2009

Loans and
 receivables

Fair value
through profit
or loss – held

for trading

Fair value
through profit

or loss –
 designated

Held to
maturity

investments
Available 

for sale

Loans to fellow subsidiary 2 171 560 — — — —
Loans to subsidiary 2 456 878 — — — —
Trade and other receivables 12 243 971 — — — —
Cash and cash equivalents 2 053 215 — — — —

18 925 624 — — — —

8. Deferred tax

Group Company

2010

R

2009

R

2010

R

2009

R

Deferred tax asset
Tax losses available for set off against future 
taxable income 450 000 — 450 000 —

450 000 — 450 000 —

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset/(liability)
Portion of unrecognised tax loss from prior years 
recognised 450 000 — 450 000 —

450 000 — 450 000 —
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8. Deferred tax (continued)

Group Company

2010

R

2009

R

2010

R

2009

R

Recognition of deferred tax asset
The entity has suffered a loss in preceding 
periods in the tax jurisdiction to which the 
deferred tax asset relates. There is an 
expectation of future profit against which  
the asset can be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax asset
Unused tax losses not recognised as deferred 
tax assets. 
(Tax losses @ 28%) 13 695 875 16 120 453 13 347 637 15 869 251

9. Inventories
Raw materials, components 6 215 203 7 218 315 6 215 203 7 218 315
Finished goods 5 945 680 4 700 618 5 945 680 4 700 618

12 160 883 11 918 933 12 160 883 11 918 933

Inventory pledged as security
Inventory pledged as security 6 000 000 6 000 000 6 000 000 6 000 000
Inventory was pledged as security to the Land 
Bank for overdraft facilities of R15 000 000 
(2009: R15 000 000) of the Group. At year  
end the overdraft amounted to R14 353 321 
(2009: R14 438 173).

10. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 11 495 096 12 076 827 11 495 096 12 076 827
Prepayments 58 120 542 228 58 120 542 228
Deposits 10 000 10 000 10 000 10 000
Other receivables 144 801 167 145 144 801 167 145

11 708 017 12 796 200 11 708 017 12 796 200

Trade and other receivables pledged as 
security
Trade and other receivables were pledged as 
security to the Land Bank for overdraft facilities 
of R15 000 000 (2009: R15 000 000) of the 
Group. At year end the overdraft amounted to 
R14 353 321 (2009: R14 438 173).
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10. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Group Company

2010

R

2009

R

2010

R

2009

R

Trade and other receivables provided for  
non-recovery
As of 31 March 2010, trade and other 
receivables of R1 866 762 (2009: R2 302 484) 
were impaired and provided for.

The ageing of these loans is as follows:
3 to 6 months — 2 796 121 — 2 796 121
Over 6 months 2 796 121 — 2 796 121 —

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of 
trade and other receivables
Opening balance 2 302 484 1 503 436 2 302 484 1 503 436
Provision for impairment — 1 357 158 — 1 357 158
Unused amounts reversed (435 722) (558 110) (435 722) (558 110)

1 866 762 2 302 484 1 866 762 2 302 484

The creation and release of provision for 
impaired receivables have been included in 
operating expenses in the income statement 
(note 19). Amounts charged to the allowance 
account are generally written off when there is 
no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 
reporting date is the fair value of each class of 
loan mentioned above. The Group does not  
hold any collateral as security other than for 
Bake Den (Pty) Limited.

11. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 1 315 109 1 215 9
Bank balances 4 677 576 2 053 206 4 677 576 2 053 206
Bank overdraft — — — —

4 678 891 2 053 315 4 678 791 2 053 215

Current assets 4 678 891 2 053 315 4 678 791 2 053 215
Current liabilities — — — —

4 678 891 2 053 315 4 678 791 2 053 215

The total amount of undrawn facilities available 
for future operating activities and commitments 746 679 561 827 746 679 561 827
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12. Share capital

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Authorised
500 000 000 ordinary shares of 1 cent each

5 000 000 5 000 000 5 000 000 5 000 000

The unissued ordinary shares are under the 
control of the directors in terms of a resolution of 
shareholders passed at the last annual general 
meeting. This authority remains in force until the 
next annual general meeting.
Issued
Ordinary 1 019 734 1 019 734 1 019 734 1 019 734
Share premium 20 359 260 20 359 260 20 359 260 20 359 260
Share issue costs written off against share 
premium (85 923) (85 923) (85 923) (85 923)

21 293 071 21 293 071 21 293 071 21 293 071

13. Other financial liabilities
Held at amortised cost
Land Bank loan 14 353 321 14 438 173 14 353 321 14 438 173

14 353 321 14 438 173 14 353 321 14 438 173

Land Bank loan terms:
•   The loan is in the form of an overdraft facility of R15 000 000 and the amount is reclaimable on the Land Banks 

request.
•    Land Bank reserve the right to determine and fix the method of interest calculation and the adjustment of 

interest rate from time to time. The current interest rate is equal to prime less 1%.
•   Granting of loan facility is subject to regular review.

Land Bank loan security:
•   Deed of Cession of book debts.
•   Deed of Cession of insurance policy.
•   A surety covering bond nos. B32355/2004 and 65999/2007 for amounts of R1 400 000 and R2 100 000 

respectively, and a notarial covering bond no. BN32356/2004 for an amount of R6 000 000.
•    Limited deed of suretyship by Mr MT Pather (CEO) for R3 000 000 (limited to 20% of the facility amount)
•   Cession of lease agreement for property on which plant and equipment is situated of AH-Vest Ltd.
•   A hypothecation of the company’s trademarks and brands registered at the relevant authorities.

Current liabilities

At amortised cost 14 353 321 14 438 173 14 353 321 14 438 173
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14. Financial lease obligation

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Minimum lease payments due

– within one year 47 436 85 488 47 436 85 488
– in second to fifth year inclusive 44 313 106 782 44 313 106 783

91 749 192 270 91 749 192 271

Less: future finance charges (9 453) (35 185) (9 453) (35 185)

Present value of minimum lease payments 82 296 157 085 82 296 157 086

Present value of minimum lease payments 
due

– within one year 40 907 66 256 40 907 66 256
– in second to fifth year inclusive 41 389 90 830 41 389 90 830

82 296 157 086 82 296 157 086

Non-current liabilities 40 906 90 830 40 906 90 830
Current liabilities 41 390 66 256 41 390 66 256

82 296 157 086 82 296 157 086

It is Group policy to lease certain motor vehicles 
and equipment under finance leases.

The average lease term was three years and the 
average effective borrowing rate was 13%  
(2009: 13%).

Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract 
date. All leases have fixed repayments and 
no arrangements have been entered into for 
contingent rent.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases 
are secured by the lessor’s charge over the 
leased assets. Refer note 3.

Defaults and breaches
No defaults or breaches of lease terms or 
payments have taken place in either the  
current or prior period.
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15. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions

Group

2010

Opening

balance

Reversed
 during 

the year Total

Legal proceedings 550 000 (550 000) —

Group

2009

Opening

balance Additions Total

Legal proceedings — 550 000 550 000

Company

2010

Opening

balance

Reversed
 during 

the year Total

Legal proceedings 550 000 (550 000) —

Company

2009

Opening

balance Additions Total

Legal proceedings — 550 000 550 000

The probable loss for legal proceedings and liability has been reversed due to legal matters regarding the 

Financial Services Board and National Empowerment Fund not being probable to succeed.
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16. Trade and other payables

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Trade payables 9 298 375 8 600 557 9 298 378 8 600 559
Value added taxation 326 325 560 923 326 325 560 923
Other payables 2 090 293 1 628 077 2 063 625 1 601 409

11 714 993 10 789 557 11 688 328 10 762 891

17. Financial liabilities by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Group

2010

Financial
liabilities at
 amortised 

cost

Fair value
through profit 
or loss – held 

for trading

Fair value
through profit

or loss –
designated Total

Other financial liabilities 14 353 321 — — 14 353 321
Trade and other payables 11 257 875 — — 11 257 875
Finance lease obligation 82 296 — — 82 296

25 693 492 — — 25 693 492

Group

2009

Financial
liabilities at
 amortised 

cost

Fair value
through profit 
or loss – held 

for trading

Fair value
through profit

or loss –
designated Total

Other financial liabilities 14 438 173 — — 14 438 173
Trade and other payables 9 653 843 — — 9 653 843
Finance lease obligation 157 086 — — 157 086

24 249 102 — — 24 249 102
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17. Financial liabilities by category (continued)

Company

2010

Financial
liabilities at
 amortised 

cost

Fair value
through profit 
or loss – held 

for trading

Fair value
through profit

or loss –
designated Total

Other financial liabilities 14 353 321 — — 14 353 321
Trade and other payables 11 257 875 — — 11 257 875
Finance lease obligation 82 296 — — 82 296

25 693 492 — — 25 693 492

Company

2009

Financial
liabilities at
 amortised 

cost

Fair value
through profit 
or loss – held 

for trading

Fair value
through profit

or loss –
designated Total

Other financial liabilities 14 438 173 — — 14 438 173
Trade and other payables 9 653 843 — — 9 653 843
Finance lease obligation 157 086 — — 157 086

24 249 102 — — 24 249 102

18. Revenue

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Sale of goods 85 354 272 60 096 786 85 354 272 60 096 786
Rental Income
Rebates

—
(7 809 176)

—
(5 095 208)

—
(7 809 176)

—
(5 095 208)

77 545 096 55 001 578 77 545 096 55 001 578



AH-Vest Limited
(Registration number 1989/000100/06)
Annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010

51

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

19. Operating profit/(loss)

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Operating profit for the year is stated after 
accounting for the following:
Operating lease charges
Premises
Straight-line amounts — — 253 296 —

— — 253 296 —

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 19 414 — 19 414 —
Impairment on intangible assets 74 407 — 74 407 —
Provision for bad debts 500 000 1 357 158 500 000 1 357 158
Loss on exchange differences — 107 079 — 107 079
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1 240 322 989 928 1 001 163 750 769
Employee costs 10 902 086 7 280 854 10 902 086 7 280 854
Research and development — — — —

20. Auditors’ remuneration
Fees 490 000 450 000 490 000 450 000
Adjustment for previous period 215 200 244 559 215 200 244 559

705 200 694 559 705 200 694 559

21. Investment revenue
Interest revenue
Interest on Group loan account 344 266 405 192 597 562 650 729
Bank 7 442 — 7 442 —

351 708 405 192 605 004 650 729

Total interest income, calculated using the 
effective interest rate, on financial instruments  
not at fair value through profit or loss amounted  
to R344 266 (2009: R405 192).

22. Finance costs

Non-current borrowings — 25 182 — 25 182
Land Bank 1 530 921 1 478 061 1 530 921 1 478 061
Current account 19 062 2 650 19 062 2 650

1 549 983 1 505 893 1 549 983 1 505 893

Total interest expense, calculated using the effective interest rate, on financial instruments not at fair value 
through profit or loss amounted to R1 547 049 (2009: R1 505 893).
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23. Taxation

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Major components of the tax (income)/expense
Current
Local income tax – current period — — — —

— — — —

Deferred
Arising from previously unrecognised tax loss (450 000) — (450 000) —

(450 000) — (450 000) —

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and 
tax expense.
Accounting (loss)/profit 695 868 (3 410 901) 1 032 062 (2 920 540)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% (2009: 28%) 194 843 (989 161) 288 977 (846 957)
Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Fines and penalties 98 587 254 627 98 587 254 627
Non-deductable legal fees 119 096 26 664 119 096 26 664
Non-deductable expenses 40 465 47 582 40 465 47 582
Deferred tax liability — 210 787 — 210 787
Unrecognised tax loss recognised as tax asset (450 000) — (450 000) —
Tax losses carried forward 27 170 261 393 — 124 092
Tax losses utilised (256 052) — (256 052) —
Originating temporary differenes (224 109) — (291 073) —

(450 000) (188 108) (450 000) (183 205)

No provision has been made for 2010 tax as the Group has no taxable income. The estimated tax loss available 
for set off against future taxable income is R13 695 875 (2009: R16 120 453).

24.  Other comprehensive income

Components of other comprehensive income

Group

2009

Gross

R

Tax

R

Net

R

Movements on revaluation
Gains/(losses) on property revaluation 720 739 (201 807) 518 932
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25. Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Profit/(loss) before taxation 695 868 (3 410 901) 1 032 062 (2 920 540)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 1 240 322 989 928 1 001 163 750 769
Profit on sale of assets  (19 414) — (19 414) —
Interest received (351 708) (405 192) (605 004) (650 729)
Finance costs 1 549 983 1 505 893 1 549 983 1 505 893
Impairment loss 574 407 1 357 158 574 407 1 357 158
Movements in operating lease liabilities  
and accruals 120 042 — 120 042 —
Movements in provisions (550 000) 550 000 (550 000) 550 000
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (241 950) (2 520 368) (241 950) (2 520 368) 
Trade and other receivables 588 183 (5 260 295) 588 183 (5 260 295)
Trade and other payables 925 432 (412 101) 925 433 (412 101)

4 531 165 (7 605 878) 4 374 905 (7 600 213)

26. Taxation paid
Balance at beginning of the year — (1 663 986) — (1 663 986)
Current tax for the year recognised in  
profit or loss — — — —
Balance at end of the year — — — —

— (1 663 986) — (1 663 986)

27.  Commitments
Operating leases – as lessee (expense) 
Minimum lease payments due
– within one year 825 281 750 248 825 273 750 248
– in second to fifth year inclusive 1 733 091 1 650 546 825 273 1 650 546

2 558 372 2 400 794 1 650 546 2 400 794

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are 
negotiated for an average term of three years. No contingent rent is payable.

28. Contingencies
There is no reimbursement from any third parties for potential obligations of the Group.

Litigation

There are material legal or arbitration proceedings, which include proceedings that are pending or threatening 
the company, which may have, or have had, in the recent past, being at least 12 months from date of this report, 
a material effect on the Group's financial position. 
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28. Contingencies (continued)

These include:

–   Financial Services Board ("FSB") investigation over the affairs of AH-Vest Limited: 
The Enforcement Committee of the FSB has imposed a penalty of R1 500 000 on AH-Vest Limited. 
AH-Vest Limited had prepared an appeal against the findings of guilt and the administrative penalties 
imposed by the Enforcement Committee of the FSB.

No provisions has been raised on for this penalty as AH-Vest's legal representatives and directors' best estimates 
indicated that it is not likely that the penalty would be enforced by the FSB appeal board. 

29. Related parties
Relationships

Ultimate holding company Africa Heritage Properties (Pty) Ltd
Fellow subsidiary Africa Heritage Power Supply (Pty) Ltd
Subsidiaries All Joy Property Holdings (Pty) Ltd 5
Shareholders with significant influence Farm Foods Holdings (Pty) Ltd, National Empowerment Fund, 

Purple Rain Properties (Pty) Ltd, MT Pather
Close family member of key management Purple Rain Properties (Pty) Limited
Members of key management MT Pather, MA Hill, A Gonsalves

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

Related party balances
Loan accounts – owing (to)/by related parties
All Joy Property Holding (Pty) Limited 2 532 960 2 435 924
Africa Heritage Power Supply (Pty) Limited 2 500 248 2 171 560
Amounts included in trade receivable/ 
(trade payable) regarding related parties
Purple Rain Properties (Pty) Limited — (36 610)
S Fanaroff & Associates Inc — (87 485)
Related party transactions
Interest paid to/(received from) related parties
All Joy Property Holding (Pty) Limited (253 296) —
Purchases from/(sales to) related parties
Purple Rain Properties (Pty) Limited 497 201 357 063
Rebel Farmers 110 390 —
Rent paid to/(received from) related parties
All Joy Property Holding (Pty) Limited 253 296 —
J Gonsalves — — 744 055 —
Legal fees
S Fanaroff & Associates Inc — 95 230
Consulting fees
JW Walters & Associates Inc — 60 000
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

30. Directors’ emoluments
Executive

2010
Emoluments for 

services as directors
Emoluments for other 
services as directors Total

M Pather — 1 208 762 1 208 762
MA Hill — 684 663 684 663
A Gonsalves — 653 644 653 644
P Mariemuthu 300 000 — 300 000

300 000 2 547 069 2 847 069

2009
Emoluments for 

services as directors
Emoluments for other 
services as directors Total

MT Pather — 866 670 866 670
MA Hill — 294 000 294 000
A Gonsalves — 493 049 493 049

— 1 653 719 1 653 719

Non-executive

2010
Emoluments for 

services as directors
Emoluments for other 
services as directors Total

M D Mawere 5 000 — 5 000
R Manning 25 000 — 25 000

30 000 — 30 000

2009
Emoluments for 

services as directors
Emoluments for other 
services as directors Total

MD Mawere 15 000 — 15 000
R Manning 35 000 — 35 000
MJ van Rensburg 36 350 — 36 350

86 350 — 86 350

31. Risk management
Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern 
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings (excluding derivative financial 
liabilities) disclosed in notes 14, 13, cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 11 and equity as disclosed in the 
statements of financial position.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

31. Risk management (continued)

Capital risk management (continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt: equity ratio.
This ration is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including 
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the statements of financial position) less cash and cash 
equivalents. Total equity is represented in the statements of financial position.
The Group’s strategy is to maintain a debt: equity ratio of between 1,30 to 1. There are no externally imposed 
capital requirements.
There have been no changes to what the entity manages as capital, the strategy for capital maintenance or 
externally imposed capital requirements from the previous year.
The debt: equity ratio at 2010 and 2009 respectively were as follows:

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
R R R R

Total borrowings
Finance lease obligation 14 82 296 157 086 82 296 157 086
Other financial liabilities 13 14 353 321 14 438 173 14 353 321 14 438 173
Operating lease liabilities 120 042 — 120 042 —
Short-term obligations 12 134 204 11 339 557 12 134 204 11 339 557

26 689 863 25 934 816 26 689 863 25 934 816
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 11 4 678 891 2 053 315 4 678 791 2 053 215

Net debt 22 010 972 23 881 501 22 011 072 23 881 601
Total equity 17 888 023 16 742 155 14 025 966 12 543 904

Total capital 39 898 995 40 623 656 36 037 038 36 425 505

Debt-equity ratio 56 52 62 52

Liquidity risk 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due 
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Group treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining 
availability under committed credit lines.
The Group’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Group manages 
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant 
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal 
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

31. Risk management (continued)

Group

At 31 March 2010

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1 and 2 years

Between 
2 and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Borrowings 14 353 321 — —
Trade and other payables 11 257 879 — —
Finance lease obligations 47 436 44 313 — —

Group

At 31 March 2009

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1 and 2 years

Between 
2 and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Borrowings 14 438 173 — —
Trade and other payables   9 653 843 — —
Finance lease obligations 66 256 90 830 — —

Company

At 31 March 2010

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1 and 2 years

Between 
2 and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Borrowings 14 353 321 — —
Trade and other payables 11 231 211 — —
Finance lease obligations 47 436 44 313 — —

Company

At 31 March 2009

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1 and 2 years

Between 
2 and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Borrowings 14 438 173 — —
Trade and other payables   9 653 843 — —
Finance lease obligations 66 256 90 830 — —

Interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
At 31 March 2010, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 0,5% higher with all other variables 
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been R51 670 (2009: R72 190) lower, mainly as a result of 
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

31. Risk management (continued)
Cash flow interest rate risk

Group

`Financial instrument
Current

interest rate
Due in less
than a year

Due in one 
to two years

Due in two 
to three years

Trade and other receivables – normal credit terms — 11 639 897 — —
Loans to fellow subsidiary — 2 500 248 — —
Finance leases 13,00% 47 436 44 313 —
Loan to subsidiary — 2 456 878 — —
Trade and other payables – extended credit terms — 11 231 211 — —
Bond over property , plant and equipment – 
floating rate 9,00% 14 353 321 — —

Credit risk
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. 
The company only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one 
counter-party.
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers 
on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no 
independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, 
past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance 
with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are 
settled in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate.
No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does not expect any losses from 
non-performance by these counterparties.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Group Company

`Financial instrument
2010

R
2009

R
2010

R
2009

R

Loan to fellow subsidiary 2 500 248 2 171 560 2 500 248 2 171 560
Bank balance 4 678 891 2 053 315 4 678 891 2 053 215
Trade and other receivables 12 235 409 12 243 971 12 235 409 12 243 971

The company is exposed to a number of guarantees for the overdraft facilities of Group companies and for 
guarantees issued in favour of the Land Bank. Refer note 13 for additional details.
Group loans consist of a loan to the subsidiary originally intended to finance the purchase of the property at Crown 
mines. This loan has no repayment terms nor security.
Group loan consist of a loan to Africa Heritage Power Supply (Pty) Ltd (prior holder of loan Africa Heritage Supply 
Solutions (Pty) for financing of operations.This loan has no repayment terms nor security.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

32. Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and 
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
The ability of the company to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant 
of these is that the directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the company and continued 
support from The Land Bank which provides a short-term working capital loan to the company that is subject to 
regular review and renewal.

33. Post balance sheet events
Per SENS release on 24 August 2010 the appeal board of the FSB has dismissed appeals against fines of 
R1 500 000 imposed against the company for the entity misstatement of financial records for the financial year 
28 February 2005.
The decision of the FSB appeal board is being challenged in the High Court by AH-Vest Limited.

34. Earnings per share
Earnings per share
The calculation of earnings per ordinary share for the Group is based on income attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of R1 145 868 (2009: R(3 410 903)) and weighted average of 101 973 333 (2009: 96 249 125) ordinary shares.
Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on an income of R1 145 868 (2008: R(3 410 903) ) and a 
weighted average of 101 973 333 (2008: 96 249 125) ordinary shares.

Company

2010 2009
R R

Earnings
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company 1 145 868 (3 410 903)
Minorities interest — —

Basic earnings 1 145 868 (3 410 903)

Diluted earnings 1 145 868 (3 410 903)

Adjustment of basic earnings
Impairment of intangible asset 74 074 —
Tax effect of impairment of asset — —
Profit on sale of assets (19 414) —
Tax effect of profit on sale of assets — —

Headline earnings 1 200 528 (3 410 903)

Diluted headline earnings 1 200 528 (3 410 903)

Ordinary shares
Issued shares at the beginning of the year 101 973 333 41 973 333
Effect of shares issued during the year (weighted) — 45 793 665
Bonus element of rights issue — 8 482 127
Weighted average number of shares 101 973 333 96 249 125
Diluted earnings per share 101 973 333 96 249 125

Headline earnings per share 1,18 (3,54)

Diluted headline earnings per share 1,18 (3,54)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

34. Earnings per share (continued)
Headline earnings per share
The calculation of headline earnings per ordinary share for the Group is based on income of R1 200 528 (2008: 
R(3 410 903)) and weighted average of 101 973 333 (2008: 96 249 125) shares.

Diluted headline earnings per share
The calculation of diluted headline earnings per ordinary share for the Group is based on an income of R1 200 
528 (2008: R(3 410 903)) and weighted average of 101 973 333 (2008: 96 249 125) shares.

35. Segment information
Customer analysis

Figures in Rand

Retail
supermarket
chain stores

Cash and
Carry

Food 
service

Independent
distributors

and
wholesalers Total

Revenue totals 62 036 077 4 652 706 4 652 706 6 203 608 77 545 097

Total contribution per section 80% 6% 6% 8% 100%
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Shareholders’ analysis

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5%

Shareholder No. of shares % holding

Shareholders holding more than 5% of total issued capital
Africa Heritage Properties (Pty) Limited 58 048 417 56,93
Farm Food Holdings (Pty) Limited 23 802 500 23,34
National Empowerment Fund 7 860 473 7,71

Total shareholders 89 711 390 87,98

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder No. of shares 31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Public 322 16 922 416 16 922 416
Non-Public
Shareholders holding more than 10% of total issued capital 2 81 850 917 81 850 917
Directors and associates 1 3 200 000 3 200 000

Total shareholders 325 101 973 333 101 973 333

SHAREHOLDERS ANALySIS AND INFORMATION

No. of shares No. of holders % holding

Individuals 302 15 791 684 7,53
Nominees and Trusts 10 262 330 0,26
Close Corporations 2 168 599 0,37
Companies, Financial Institutions 11 85 750 719 91,84

Total shareholders 325 101 973 333 100,00

Size of shareholding No. of holders No. of shares % holding

1 – 1 000 112 46 479 0,05
1 001 – 10 000 124 603 984 0,59
10 001 – 100 000 72 2 241 185 2,20
100 001 – 1 000 000 12 2 310 895 2,27
1 000 001 and over 5 96 770 790 94,90

Total shareholders 325 101 973 333 100,00

CATEGORISATION OF SHAREHOLDERS PUBLIC VS NON-PUBLIC AS AT 31 MARCH 2010

No. of shares % holding

Non-public
Shareholders holding more than 10% of total issued capital
Africa Heritage Investments (Pty) Limited 58 048 417 56,93
Farm Food Holdings (Pty) Limited 23 802 500 23,34
Directors and Associates of the Company 3 200 000 3,14
Public 16 922 416 16,59

Total shareholders 101 973 333 100,00
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AH-VEST LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)

(Registration number 1989/000100/06)
(“AH-Vest” or “the company”)

JSE code: AHL                                        ISIN code:  ZAE000129177

Directors
P Mariemuthu* (Chairman) MD Mawere* 
MT Pather (Chief Executive Officer) R Manning*#

MA Hill (Financial Director) A Gonsalves*

*Non-executive
#Independent

Notice of annual general meeting of the  
shareholders of the company

Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of shareholders of the company will be held at Arcay 
House II, Number 3 Anerley Road, Parktown, Johannesburg at 10:00 on Monday, 1 November 2010, to consider, 
and if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following ordinary resolutions:

1. Ordinary resolution number 1 – annual financial statements

  “RESOLVED THAT: the annual financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries for the period 
ended 31 March 2010, together with the directors’ and auditors’ reports thereon be received, considered and 
adopted.”

2. Ordinary resolution number 2 – director retirement and re-election – Mr Mel Hill

  “RESOLVED THAT: Mr Melville Aubrey Hill, who retires in accordance with the provisions of the company’s 
articles of association, but being eligible offers himself for re-election, be and hereby is re-elected as non-
executive director of the company.”

 Mr Hill’s curriculum vitae is set out at the end of this notice of annual general meeting.

3. Ordinary resolution number 3 – director retirement and re-election – Mrs Rosalie Manning

  “RESOLVED THAT: Mrs Rosalie Manning, who retires in accordance with the provisions of the company’s 
articles of association, but being eligible offers herself for re-election, be and hereby is re-elected as a non-
executive director of the company.”

  Mrs Manning’s curriculum vitae is set out at the end of this notice of annual general meeting.

 Explanatory note for ordinary resolutions 2 and 3:

  In accordance with the articles of association of the company one-third of the directors are required to retire at 
each meeting and may offer themselves for re-election.  In terms of the articles of association of the company 
the CEO, during the period of his service contract, is not taken into account when determining which directors 
are to retire by rotation.  

4. Ordinary resolution number 4 – re-appointment and remuneration of auditors

  “RESOLVED THAT: the re-appointment of PKF Accountants as the auditors with Sanjay Ranchhoojee as 
the designated auditor, at partner status, be and hereby is approved and that the directors be and are hereby 
authorised to determine the remuneration of the auditors.”

 Explanatory note for ordinary resolution 4:

  PKF Accountants and Business Advisers have indicated their willingness to continue as the company’s 
auditors until the next annual general meeting. The audit committee has satisfied itself as to the independence 
of PKF Accountants and Business Advisers. The audit committee has the power in terms of the Corporate 
Laws Amendment Act, 2006 to approve the remuneration of the external auditors. The remuneration and 
non-audit fees paid to the auditors during the year ended 31 March 2010 are contained in notes of the annual 
financials statement.
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5. Ordinary resolution number 5 – Non-executive directors’ remuneration

  “RESOLVED THAT: the approval of the remuneration payable to the non-executive directors for the 
financial year commencing 1 April 2010 as follows:

Chairman
Other directors/members of 

committees

Board meeting: Attendance R15 000 R5 000

Audit committee: Attendance R10 000 R5 000

 Explanatory note for ordinary resolution number 5:
  Shareholders are requested to approve the remuneration payable to non-executive directors for serving on 

the board and board committees of the company. Refer to the directors’ report for the Board and Board 
composition as at 31 March 2010.

6. Ordinary resolution number 6 – placing unissued shares under control of directors

  “RESOLVED THAT: the authorised, but unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the company be placed 
under the control of the directors of the company until the next annual general meeting of the company and 
that the directors be and are hereby authorised and empowered to allot, issue and otherwise dispose of such 
shares, on such terms and conditions and at such times as the directors in their discretion deem fit, subject to 
the Section 221 and 222 of the Companies Act 61 of 1973 and the JSE Listings Requirements.”

 Explanatory note for ordinary resolution number 6:

  Shareholders are requested to approve the placing of unissued shares under the control of the directors in 
order to facilitate potential acquisitions or issues of shares for cash.

7. Ordinary resolution number 7 – general authority to allot and issue shares for cash

  “RESOLVED THAT: subject to the approval of 75% of the members present in person and by proxy, and 
entitled to vote at the meeting, excluding the controlling shareholders of the company and the company’s 
Designated Advisor, the directors of the company be and hereby are authorised, by way of general authority, 
to allot and issue all or any of the authorised but unissued shares in the capital of the company as they in their 
discretion deem fit, subject to the following limitations:

 •  the shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is 
not the case, must be limited to such equity securities or rights that are convertible into a class already in 
issue;

 •  this authority shall not endure beyond the next annual general meeting of the company nor shall it endure 
beyond 15 months from the date of this meeting;there will be no restrictions in regard to the persons to 
whom the shares may be issued, provided that such shares are to be issued to public shareholders (as 
defined by the JSE in its Listings Requirements) and not to related parties;

 •  upon any issue of shares which, together with prior issues during any financial year, will constitute 5% or 
more of the number of shares of the class in issue, the company shall by way of an announcement on 
Securities Exchange News Service (“SENS”), give full details thereof, including the effect on the net asset 
value of the company and earnings per share;

 •  the aggregate issue of a class of shares already in issue in any financial year may not exceed 50% of the 
number of that class of shares (including securities which are compulsorily convertible into shares of that 
class); and

 •  the maximum discount at which shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average traded price of the 
company’s shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is determined or 
agreed by the directors of the applicant.”

Explanatory note for ordinary resolution number 7:
Shareholders are requested to approve the general authority to issue shares for cash, in the event that the 
board of directors deems such an issue of shares to be necessary.
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Voting and proxies

Certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with “own name” registration

If you are unable to attend the annual general meeting of AH-Vest shareholders to be held at 10:00 on Monday,  
1 November 2010, at Arcay House II, Number 3 Anerley Road, Parktown, Johannesburg and wish to be represented 
thereat, you should complete and return the attached form of proxy in accordance with the instructions contained 
therein and lodge it with, or post it to, the transfer secretaries, namely Computershare Investor Services (Pty) 
Limited, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107) so as to be received by 
them by no later than 10:00 on Thursday, 28 October 2010.

Dematerialised shareholders, other than those with “own name” registration

If you hold dematerialised shares in AH-Vest through a CSDP or broker and do not have an “own name” 
registration, you must timeously advise your CSDP or broker of your intention to attend and vote at the annual 
general meeting or be represented by proxy thereat in order for your CSDP or broker to provide you with (your 
voting instruction at the annual general meeting) the necessary authorisation to do so, or should you not wish to 
attend the annual general meeting in person, you must timeously provide your CSDP or broker with your voting 
instruction in order for the CSDP or broker to vote in accordance with your instruction at the annual general 
meeting.

Each shareholder, whether present in person or represented by proxy, is entitled to attend and vote at the annual 
general meeting.  On a show of hands, every shareholder who is present in person or by proxy shall have one 
vote, and, on a poll, every shareholder present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for each share held by 
him/her.

By order of the Board

Arcay Client Support (Pty) Limited
(Registration Number 1998/025284/07)
Company secretary

30 June 2010
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AH-VEST LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)

(Registration number 1989/000100/06)
(“AH-Vest” or “company”)

JSE code: AHL                         ISIN code: ZAE000129177

Form of proxy (for use by certificated and  
own name dematerialised shareholders only)

For use by certificated and “own name” registered dematerialised shareholders of the company (“shareholders”) 
at the annual general meeting of AH-Vest to be held at 10:00 on Monday, 1 November 2010 at Arcay House II, 
Number 3 Anerley Road, Parktown, Johannesburg (“the annual general meeting”).

I/We (please print) 

of (address) 

being the holder/s of   ordinary shares of 1 cent in AH-Vest, appoint (see note 1):

1. or failing him/her,
2. or failing him/her,

3. the chairperson of the annual general meeting,

as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting which will be held for the 
purpose of considering, and if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions to be proposed 
thereat and at any adjournment thereof; and to vote for and/or against the resolutions and/or abstain from voting 
in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instructions 
(see note 2):

Number of votes

For Against Abstain

 Ordinary resolution number 1 –
 Adoption of annual financial statements

 Ordinary resolution number 2 –
 Director retirement and re-election – Mr M Hill

 Ordinary resolution number 3 –
 Director retirement and re-election – Mrs R Manning

 Ordinary resolution number 4 –
 Auditors’ remuneration and re-appointment of auditors

 Ordinary resolution number 5 –
 Non-executive remuneration

 Ordinary resolution number 6 –
 Placing unissued shares under control of directors

 Ordinary resolution number 7 –
 General authority to allot and issue shares for cash

Signed at   on   2010

Signature

Assisted by me (where applicable) 

Name Capacity Signature 
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1. Certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with “own name” registration

If you are a certificated shareholder or have dematerialised your shares with “own name” registration 
and you are unable to attend the annual general meeting of AH-Vest shareholders to be held at 10:00 on  
Monday, 1 November 2010 at the registered office of the company at Arcay House II, Number 3 Anerley 
Road, Parktown, Johannesburg, 2193 and wish to be represented thereat, you must complete and return this 
form of proxy in accordance with the instructions contained herein and lodge it with, or post it to, the transfer 
secretaries, namely Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001  
(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107), so as to be received by them no later than 10:00 on  
Thursday, 28 October 2010.

2. Dematerialised shareholders other than those with “own name” registration

If you hold dematerialised shares in AH-Vest through a CSDP or broker other than with an “own name” 
registration, you must timeously advise your CSDP or broker of your intention to attend and vote at the annual 
general meeting or be represented by proxy thereat, in order for your CSDP or broker to provide you with the 
necessary authorisation to do so, or should you not wish to attend the annual general meeting in person, you 
must timeously provide your CSDP or broker with your voting instruction in order for the CSDP or broker to 
vote in accordance with your instruction at the annual general meeting.

NOTES

1. Each member is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be a member of the company) to 
attend, speak and, on a poll, vote in place of that member at the annual general meeting.

2. A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member’s choice in 
the space provided, with or without deleting “the chairman of the annual general meeting”. The person whose 
name stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at the annual general meeting will be entitled to act 
as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow.

3. A member’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes 
exercisable by that member in the appropriate box/es provided. Failure to comply with the above will be 
deemed to authorise the chairperson of the annual general meeting, if he/she is the authorised proxy, to 
vote in favour of the ordinary resolutions at the annual general meeting, or any other proxy to vote or to 
abstain from voting at the annual general meeting as he/she deems fit, in respect of all the member’s votes 
exercisable thereat.

4. A member or his/her proxy is not obliged to vote in respect of all the ordinary shares held or represented by 
him/her but the total number of votes for or against the resolutions and in respect of which any abstention is 
recorded may not exceed the total number of votes to which the member holder or his/her proxy is entitled.

5. Forms of proxy must be lodged with the transfer secretaries, of the company by not later than 10:00 on 
Thursday, 28 October 2010.

6. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant member from attending the 
annual general meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in 
terms hereof, should such member wish to do so.

7. Any alterations or corrections to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

8. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative 
capacity must be attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the company’s transfer office or 
waived by the chairperson of the annual general meeting.

9. The chairperson of the annual general meeting may reject or accept any proxy form which is completed and/
or received other than in accordance with these instructions and notes, provided that he/she is satisfied as to 
the manner in which a member wishes to vote.
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AH-Vest Limited
(Registration number 1989/000100/06)

Curricula Vitae

Melville Aubrey Hill
Mel has extensive experience in all aspects of senior general management at executive level in both large and 
medium-sized companies, with particular emphasis on finance, accounting, administration, production, industrial 
relations and multi-branch trading operations.

Mel passed his South African Public Accountants and Auditors Board exam in 1967.

Rosalie Manning

BA, LL.B
Rosalie is an independent consultant and strategic advisor in the Human Resources and Empowerment fields, 
with a core focus on people development and human potential.  Rosalie holds a number of directorships and 
is the chair of the remuneration committee of Johannesburg Fresh Produce Market, the Chris J Botha Alumni, 
SJSM (Pty) Ltd and the African Heritage Trust and a member of the Finance Board of the Anglican Church of 
Southern Africa and the Exemptions Body of the National Bargaining Council for the Road Freight Industry.  She 
was appointed to the board of AH-Vest in September 2008 and in January 2010, was appointed as chair of the 
Audit Committee.
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AH-Vest Limited
(Registration number 1989/000100/06)

Administration

Company Secretary and Registered Office
Arcay Client Support (Pty) Limited
(Registration number 1998/025284/07)
Arcay House II
Number 3 Anerley Road
Parktown 2193
PO Box 62397
Marshalltown, 2107
Tel +27 11 480 8500
Fax +27 11 480 8556

Transfer Secretaries
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited
(Registration number 2004/003647/07)
70 Marshall Street
Johannesburg, 2001
PO Box 61051
Marshalltown, 2107

Designated Advisor
Arcay Moela Sponsors (Pty) Limited
(Registration number 2006/033725/07)
Arcay House II
Number 3 Anerley Road
Parktown, 2193
PO Box 62397
Marshalltown, 2107

Auditors
PKF Accountants and Business Advisers
Practice number 928231A
105 Club Avenue
Waterkloof Heights
Pretoria
0065
PO Box 98060
Waterkloof Heights
0065
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AH-Vest Limited
(Registration number 1989/000100/06)

Shareholder's diary

FINANCIAL YEAR-END End of March each year

• Interim results 30 September 2010

• Next annual general meeting 1 November 2010
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AH-Vest Limited
(Registration number 1989/000100/06)

General information

Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities Manufacturing of food related products

Directors MT Pather
 P Mariemuthu
 MA Hill
 A Gonsalves 
 MD Mawere  
 R Manning

Registered office Arcay House II
 Number 3 Anerley Road
 Parktown
 2193

Business address 103 Booysens Crown Mines 
 Johannesburg 2135

Postal address PO Box 2152
 Southdale
 2135

Bankers Nedbank Limited
 Land Bank

Auditors PKF (Pta) Inc.
 Chartered Accountants (S.A.) 
 Registered Auditors
 Registration number: 2000/026635/21

Secretary Arcay Client Support (Pty) Ltd

Company registration number 1989/000100/06




